
CITY OF TONGANOXIE 
321 S. DELAWARE 913-845-2620 

March 4, 2019 
7:00 Regular Meeting 

*Note – This meeting may be transmitted via Facebook Live on the City of Tonganoxie page

Honorable Jason K. Ward, Mayor 
Council Members 

David Bennett Rocky Himpel     Curtis Oroke   Lisa Patterson Loralee Stevens 

Open Regular Meeting – 7:00 p.m. 

I. Pledge of Allegiance 

II. Approval of Minutes – Special meeting dated February 21, 2019

III. Consent Agenda

a) Review bill payments

IV. Open Agenda
Members of the public are welcome to use this time to comment about any matter relating to City 
business. The comments that are discussed under Open Agenda may or may not be acted upon by the 
Council during this meeting. In order to speak during open agenda, you must sign up with your name 
and address with the city clerk or designee before the meeting.  Comments will be limited to 3 
minutes.  Please wait to be recognized by the Mayor and state your name and address for the record. 

V. Old Business 

a) UTV Legislation Discussion

VI. New Business

a) Consider Approval of Request to Dispose of Police Equipment

b) Consider Approval of Request to Purchase Utility Service Vehicle

c) Consider Approval of Request to Purchase Water Tower Inspection Services

d) Consider Approval of Request to Purchase Replacement Pump at the WWTP

e) Consider Approval of Request to Utilize Contractual Services to Rebuild the Bar Screen at the
WWTP

f) Resolution 03-19-01: Approving a Contract with Kramer & Associates for Auditing Services

g) City Manager Agenda
1. City Attorney Update
2. Library Project Update

h) City Attorney Agenda

i) Mayor Pro Tem Agenda

j) City Council Agenda

k) Mayor Agenda



VII. Information & Communications (No Action Required) 
 
VIII. Adjourn 



 
City Council Meeting Minutes 

February 21, 2019 
7:00 Special Meeting 

 
Open Regular Meeting – 7:00 p.m. 
 
I. Pledge of Allegiance  

• Mayor Ward opened the meeting at 7:00 PM with the Pledge of Allegiance.  
• Roll Call: Council members present were Mayor Ward, Mr. Himpel, Mr. Oroke, Ms. Patterson, and Mr. Bennett. 

Ms. Stevens was absent. City Manager George Brajkovic, City Attorney Shannon Marcano, Police Chief Greg 
Lawson, Fire Chief John Zimbelman, and Assistant City Manager Dan Porter were also in attendance.   

 
II. Approval of Minutes – Regular meeting dated February 4, 2019 
o Mr. Oroke made a motion to approve the minutes from the February 4, 2019 City Council meeting.  
o Ms. Patterson seconded.  
o Vote of all ayes, motion carried. 

 
III. Consent Agenda 

 
a) Review bill payments 

o Mr. Bennett made a motion to approve the consent agenda.  
o Mr. Oroke seconded.  
o Vote of all ayes, motion carried. 

 
IV. Open Agenda 

Members of the public are welcome to use this time to comment about any matter relating to City 
business. The comments that are discussed under Open Agenda may or may not be acted upon by the 
Council during this meeting. In order to speak during open agenda, you must sign up with your name 
and address with the city clerk or designee before the meeting.  Comments will be limited to 3 
minutes.  Please wait to be recognized by the Mayor and state your name and address for the record. 

• No members of the public addressed the City Council during open agenda. 
 
V. Old Business 

 
a) UTV Draft Policy and Ordinance Alternatives Presentation  

• Mr. Brajkovic introduced the item and delivered a presentation on the staff research of current City Code and 
how UTV and Golf Cart usage would require adjustments to the Code. He also noted several remaining items 
requiring policy direction from the governing body before an ordinance can be produced for consideration. 
Some such items include safety feature requirements, a proposed fee structure, insurance documentation 
requirements, and what types of vehicles to include in the ordinance. 

• Mr. Himpel asked what type of registration was envisioned.  
• Chief Lawson stated that a registration would result in a visible sticker being placed on the frame of the UTV 

denoting the date of effective registration.  
• Mr. Bennett asked what considerations were for golf carts from the perspective of public safety departments.  
• Chief Lawson described the main differences between golf carts and UTVs as more limited mobility and lack of 

rollover protection.  
• Mayor Ward requested the Council provide direction to staff on how to proceed.  
• Mr. Oroke commented that he supported staff to continuing to work to refine the safety regulations for UTVs.  
• Mr. Bennett commented that the fine structure needed to be evaluated as well, and a portion of registration 

fees should recompense the Police Department and Admin Department for their efforts. Other considerations 



 
should be allowing County residents to register their UTVs and how to address usage during events like the 
Leavenworth County Fair.  

• Cody Thornton, 82 1E 6th Street, addressed the Council and commented that he was fine with proceeding with 
only UTVs and not golf carts in light of the safety concerns discussed earlier.  

• Mayor Ward asked that more information be collected about a fee and fine structures and commented that with 
Ms. Stevens absent the discussion should continue at a future meeting to give her the opportunity to share her 
thoughts on which type of vehicles to include.  
 

VI. New Business 
 

a) Consider Approval of Request to Donate Tonganoxie Water Park Family Season Pass to Genesis 
Schools 

• Mr. Brajkovic introduced the item and described the request from Genesis Schools.  
• Denise Bixby, with Genesis Schools, described the request for one water park family pass to auction off and 

thanked the Council for their support.  
o Mr. Bennett made a motion to waive the $140 Tonganoxie Water Park resident family season pass fee and 

donate it to the Genesis Christian Academy for use at an upcoming annual silent auction.  
o Ms. Patterson seconded.  
o Vote of all ayes, motion carried. 

 
b) New Library Project Presentation 
(this item considered before item 6f) 

• Mr. Brajkovic introduced the item and introduced Nicole Holifield to the Council.  
• Nicole Holifield, the Tonganoxie Public Library Director, introduced the item to the City Council and provided an 

overview of the public input processes completed to date for the project.  
• Jim Stufflebeam, with SAPP Architects, presented the preliminary design documents to the City Council and a 

short presentation.  
• Curtis Golba, with JE Dunn, also provided information about the project schedule and next steps.  
• Mayor Ward asked what the typical practice was in terms of numbers of entrance points.  
• Mr. Himpel noted that side doors can be important for Fire Code requirements.  
• Ms. Patterson asked if the current design documents reflected the proposed number of computers and location 

anticipated in the new building. 
• Ms. Holifield commented that the design reflects bundled technology provision in several areas of the  
• Ms. Patterson asked what the size increase was in the design of the new library. 
• Mr. Stufflebeam commented that this was an increase of almost 50% in size.  
• Ms. Patterson asked what wasn’t possible to include in the current design.  
• Ms. Holifield stated that the new library checks most items, but some desired things like a Kansas history room 

or additional collaboration spaces weren’t possible until a future expansion. The new space allows for better 
separation of materials by age group or interest.  

• Ms. Patterson asked when the new Library would be lacking in space.  
• Ms. Holifield stated that she completed a population projection and that when those figures were compiled it 

proposed future size requirement of 16,500 square feet. The current design is set up to accommodate future 
expansions. 

• Mr. Oroke commented that the direction of the slope of the roof versus the slope of the landscape and location 
of the electrical box are items he would like the design group to consider to make sure they are designing in the 
most effective manner possible.  He also asked if this would be a steel structure.  

• Mr. Stufflebeam stated that this would likely be a steel frame structure based on the design.  



 
• Mr. Brajkovic thanked the parties involved in the design process, including the Tonganoxie Library Board and 

contractors, for their efforts on the project and expressed excitement that the building would be located in a 
transition area next to the City’s downtown.  

• Ms. Patterson expressed concern with the level of financing based on the idea of possible additional needs 
during the timeframe of the debt financing for the project.   

• Mayor Ward noted the work completed in the past year by the Governing Body answered the question of how 
much funding to allocate to the Library project and that he didn’t see the budget changing for the current 
project at this point based on the momentum and steps already completed to reach this point.  

• Mr. Oroke noted that the project needs to be moving forward and that the current amount of funding, making 
up 65% of the estimated $8,100,000 in revenue from the sales tax over the 20 year duration, was adequate for 
the project.    

o Mr. Oroke made a motion to support the current design documents and support the project moving forward.   
o Mr. Bennett seconded.  
o Vote of 3 ayes 1 nay (Patterson), motion carried. 

 
c) Consider Approval of Request to Purchase Fire Communication System 

• Mr. Porter introduced the item and described the proposed purchase of wireless communications gear for the 
City’s new Pierce Saber Fire Pumper Truck.   

• Chief Zimbelman clarified that it was a wireless headset, and that the driver could maintain contact with the 
crew wherever the driver or members of the crew are located around the rig.  

• Mayor Ward asked if the system was compatible with the other vehicles in the department fleet. 
• Chief Zimbelman stated that it would be fully compatible.   
o Mr. Oroke made a motion to approve the purchase of Fire Communications Gear in an amount not to exceed 

$6,407.46 
o Ms. Patterson seconded.  
o Vote of all ayes, motion carried. 

 
d) Consider Approval of Proposed Adjustments to 2019 Position Summary and 2019 Pay Ranges  

• Mr. Brajkovic introduced the item and described the Police Chief’s process to assess the staffing makeup of the 
department.  

• Mr. Porter described the proposed changes to the City’s current position summary and pay ranges to 
incorporate two corporals in place of the part time administrative position that was included in the 2019 budget.  

o Mr. Himpel made a motion to amend the 2019 Position Summary and 2019 Pay Ranges to include two Police 
Corporal position classifications.  

o Mr. Bennett seconded.  
o Vote of all ayes, motion carried. 

 
e) Proposals Submitted in Response to RFP for Auditing Services 

• Mr. Porter introduced the item and described the RFP process used for the collection of proposals for auditing 
services. He reviewed the attachment in the packet describing the proposals and requested direction from the 
Council on whether to proceed with contract negotiations.   

o Ms. Patterson made a motion to direct staff to negotiate a contract for auditing services with Kramer & 
Associates and to bring it back to the City Council for consideration.  

o Mr. Oroke seconded.  
o Vote of all ayes, motion carried. 

 
f) Ordinance 1445: Acceptance of Utility Easement from Joshua and Jennifer McGhee 

• Mr. Brajkovic introduced the three ordinances on the agenda and noted they helped achieve the acquisition of 
access to complete an interceptor sewer project to the Tonganoxie Business Park.  



 
o Mr. Himpel made a motion to approve Ordinance 1445, accepting a utility easement from Joshua and Jennifer 

McGhee.   
o Mr. Bennett seconded.  
o Vote of all ayes, motion carried. 

 
g) Ordinance 1463: Acceptance of Utility Easement from Rick and Peggy Kooser 

o Mr. Himpel made a motion to approve Ordinance 1463, accepting a utility easement from Rick and Peggy 
Kooser.   

o Mr. Bennett seconded.  
o Vote of all ayes, motion carried. 

 
h) Ordinance 1464: Acceptance of Utility Easement from USD 464 of Leavenworth County 

o Mr. Himpel made a motion to approve Ordinance 1464, accepting a utility easement from USD 464 of 
Leavenworth County.   

o Mr. Bennett seconded.  
o Vote of all ayes, motion carried. 

 
i) City Manager Agenda 

1. January 2019 Financial Report 
•  Mr. Porter introduced the item and delivered the financial report to the City Council.  

2. Library Project Update 
• Mr. Brajkovic noted that the financial report was included in the City Council agenda packet for the meeting and 

that there were no changes from the prior month’s financial report.  
 

j) City Attorney Agenda 
 

k) Mayor Pro Tem Agenda 
 

l) City Council Agenda 
• Ms. Patterson thanked the Public Works Department for all their hard work in combating the winter storms 

recently experienced in the City.  
 

m) Mayor Agenda 
• Mayor Ward notified the public that the FFA Breakfast was taking place on Saturday from 6:30 AM to 10 AM.  

1. Executive session pursuant to the preliminary discussion of the acquisition of real property 
(item considered before item 6f) 

o Ms. Patterson made a motion at 8:30 PM to recess the City Council into executive session to discuss property 
acquisition pursuant to the preliminary discussion of the acquisition of real property exception, K.S.A. 75-4319 
(b) (6). The open meeting will resume in the City Council chambers after 10 minutes at 8:40 PM. 
The executive session will include the Governing Body, City Manager, City Attorney, and Assistant City 
Manager. 

o Mr. Himpel seconded the motion.  
o Vote of all ayes, motion carried.  

… 
o Ms. Patterson made a motion at 8:40 PM to return from executive session and noted that no action was 

taken. 
o Mr. Oroke seconded the motion.  
o Vote of all ayes, motion carried.  

 
2. Executive session pursuant to the discussion of personnel matters of non-elected personnel 

o Ms. Patterson made a motion at 8:52 PM to recess the City Council into executive session to discuss staff 
performance pursuant to the discussion of personnel matters of nonelected personnel exception, K.S.A. 75-
4319 (b) (1). The open meeting will resume in the City Council chambers after 15 minutes at 9:07 PM. 
The executive session will include the Governing Body and City Attorney. 



 
o Mr. Himpel seconded the motion.  
o Vote of all ayes, motion carried.  

… 
o Ms. Patterson made a motion at 9:07 PM to return from executive session and noted that no action was 

taken. 
o Mr. Oroke seconded the motion.  
o Vote of all ayes, motion carried.  

 
o Ms. Patterson made a motion at 9:09 PM to recess the City Council into executive session to discuss staff 

performance pursuant to the discussion of personnel matters of nonelected personnel exception, K.S.A. 75-
4319 (b) (1). The open meeting will resume in the City Council chambers after 20 minutes at 9:29 PM. 
The executive session will include the Governing Body, City Manager and City Attorney. 

o Mr. Bennett seconded the motion.  
o Vote of all ayes, motion carried.  

… 
o Ms. Patterson made a motion at 9:29 PM to return from executive session and noted that no action was 

taken. 
o Mr. Oroke seconded the motion.  
o Vote of all ayes, motion carried.  

 
o Ms. Patterson made a motion at 9:30 PM to recess the City Council into executive session to discuss staff 

performance pursuant to the discussion of personnel matters of nonelected personnel exception, K.S.A. 75-
4319 (b) (1). The open meeting will resume in the City Council chambers after 10 minutes at 9:40 PM. 
The executive session will include the Governing Body and City Attorney. 

o Mr. Oroke seconded the motion.  
o Vote of all ayes, motion carried.  

… 
o Ms. Patterson made a motion at 9:40 PM to extend the current executive session for 10 minutes. 
o Mr. Bennett seconded the motion.  
o Vote of all ayes, motion carried.  

… 
o Ms. Patterson made a motion at 9:50 PM to return from executive session and noted that no action was 

taken. 
o Mr. Oroke seconded the motion.  
o Vote of all ayes, motion carried.  

 
o Mr. Himpel made a motion to increase the City Manager’s compensation reflective of his performance 

evaluation and in accordance with his employment agreement.   
o Mr. Bennett seconded.  
o Vote of all ayes, motion carried. 

 
 

VII. Information & Communications (No Action Required) 
 
VIII. Adjourn 

 
o Ms. Patterson made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  
o Mr. Oroke seconded the motion.  
o Vote of all ayes, motion carried.  
o Meeting adjourned at 9:50 p.m. 

 
Respectfully submitted,  
 



 

 
Dan Porter, Assistant City Manager 
 



Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount Payment Amount Number
56 BLUE CROSS AND BLUE SHIELD 02/2 Regular 0 31596.14 45944

189 FIRST STATE BANK & TRUST 02/1 Regular 0 29073.65 45930
59 Kansas City Board of Public Utilities 02/1 Regular 0 17260.12 45934

414 LINK-LITE NETWORKING, INC. 02/2 Regular 0 6960 45953
263 INDEPENDENT SALT COMPANY 02/2 Regular 0 6755.09 45951

1040 Joshua McGhee 02/2 Regular 0 5000 45959
579 SECURITY BENEFIT - 457 02/2 Regular 0 2881.92 45957
671 WESTAR ENERGY 02/1 Regular 0 2802.73 45943
185 FERRELLGAS 02/1 Regular 0 2514.52 45929
813 FREESTATE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE 02/2 Regular 0 1653 45948
548 RECORDNEWS 02/1 Regular 0 1554.8 45942
216 GOULD EVANS PC 02/2 Regular 0 1466.25 45949
514 PITNEY BOWES, INC. 02/1 Regular 0 1000 45941

20 AMERICAN EQUIPMENT CO. 02/1 Regular 0 943.52 45926
308 KANSAS  STATE TREASURER 02/1 Regular 0 941.5 45933
809 FREESTATE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE INC 02/1 Regular 0 811.53 45931
857 MIDCONTINENT COMMUNICATIONS 02/2 Regular 0 727.66 45954

99 CITY OF LEAVENWORTH 02/2 Regular 0 700 45947
628 TODD'S TIRE LLC 02/2 Regular 0 644 45958
578 SECURITY BENEFIT 02/2 Regular 0 552.63 45956
426 LEAVENWORTH COUNTY  SHERIFF OFFICE 02/1 Regular 0 467.5 45938
348 KBI 02/1 Regular 0 400 45936
542 QUILL 02/2 Regular 0 377.14 45955

1035 Control Printing Group 02/1 Regular 0 375 45928
46 BAY BRIDGE ADMINISTRATORS, LLC 02/1 Regular 0 357.54 45927

857 MIDCONTINENT COMMUNICATIONS 02/1 Regular 0 354.13 45939
1038 Hillcrest Wrecker & Garage, INC 02/2 Regular 0 350 45950

330 KANSAS GAS SERVICE 02/1 Regular 0 331.76 45935
757 KC CLEAN 02/1 Regular 0 300 45937
477 NAVRATS 02/1 Regular 0 231.64 45940
942 CALLBACK STAFFING 02/2 Regular 0 216.75 45946

70 BROTHER' S MARKET 02/2 Regular 0 192.72 45945
1034 John Zimbelman 02/1 Regular 0 163.3 45932
1037 KU Fire and Rescue Training Institute 02/2 Regular 0 60 45952

Payment Type
Regular Checks
Manual Checks
Voided Checks
Bank Drafts
EFT's

3/1/2019 12:41:09 PM

0 0 0.00 0.00
42 34 0.00 120,016.54

0 0 0.00 0.00
0 0 0.00 0.00
0 0 0.00 0.00

Bank Code AP Bank Summary
Payable

Count
Payment

Count Discount Payment
42 34 0.00 120,016.54

My Check Report
City of Tonganoxie, KS By Check Number

Date Range: 02/12/2019 - 02/28/2019



42

0

0

0

0

42

3/1/2019 12:41:09 PM

998 Gen Fund-Pooled Cash 2/2019 120016.54
120016.54

Fund Summary
Fund Name Period Amount

EFT's 0 0.00 0.00

34 0.00 120,016.54

Voided Checks 0 0.00 0.00

Bank Drafts 0 0.00 0.00

Regular Checks 34 0.00 120,016.54

Manual Checks 0 0.00 0.00

My Check Report Date Range: 02/12/2019 - 02/28/2019

All Bank Codes Check Summary
Payable

Count
Payment 

CountPayment Type Discount Payment



City of Tonganoxie www.tonganoxie.org (913) 845-2620 
  

 
Office of the City Manager 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 
DATE:  March 4, 2019 
TO:  Honorable Mayor Jason K. Ward and Members of the City Council 
FROM:  Greg Lawson, Police Chief 
SUBJECT:  City-Owned Equipment Disposition Request and Proposed Policy Adjustment to Issue 

Police Sidearm 
 
DISCUSSION: 
In one of many recent assessments completed by the Tonganoxie Police Department, staff identified 
opportunities to improve the current firearm policy. The Department currently lacks firearm uniformity, which 
poses both tactical and logistical concerns.  In the past, officers have been allowed to purchase any type of 
handgun for duty purposes.  This was contingent upon the Police Chief approving the make, model, and 
caliber. Currently, our officers carry two different brand (make) handguns, and three different caliber variations 
(9mm, .40 caliber, and 52mm). 
 
There are potential adverse issues associated with carrying different handguns (make and caliber).  In a 
tactical situation, officers could need to share ammunition or possibly handgun magazines.  This is impossible 
if their weapons are not alike and accessories are incompatible.   
 
From a logistical standpoint, there are multiple negative reasons associated with the current platform: 

• It is difficult to purchase bulk ammunition because there are three different caliber bullets being utilized 
by the agency. 

• The Police Range Master is responsible for maintaining and ensuring all weapons are functional.  It is 
difficult for the Range Master to be intricately familiar with three different make of weapons.  

• If an officer is involved in a shooting, his/her weapon will be seized as evidence.  The Tonganoxie 
Police Department does not maintain a duplicate weapon for each employed officer (due to the varying 
brands and calibers). 

• Some firearm training regimens are difficult to execute with varying weapon systems. 
• Currently, officers purchase and own their own firearms.  City purchased handguns will enable better 

oversight over weapons.    
 
Staff researched cost, tested, and evaluated various side arm possibilities.  Sig Sauer is a leading law 
enforcement handgun distributor, and was the preferred choice.  Staff also explored if the overall handgun cost 
could be offset by selling various City-owned firearms.  Over the course of many years, the Tonganoxie Police 
Department has purchased various handguns, ammunition, and handgun magazines. Many are currently not 
being utilized and thus make excellent candidates for replacement. 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
Sig Sauer provided a “trade value” bid for all unused Department firearms and accessories (see included 
attachment).  The company bid $4,446.00 for said equipment, and will provide our agency with a trade credit if 
we purchase 9mm handguns from them.  The Department has twelve officers and requires at least one spare 
handgun.  The cost of the thirteen (13) handguns totals $6,613.49.  After the trade credit of $4,446.00 is 
applied, the purchase price of these handguns will total $2,167.49.  
 
The remaining cost of $2,167.49 would be paid out of the Police Equipment Fund. At the end of 2018 the fund 
balance available in the Police Equipment Fund was $29,271, and this purchase would reduce the anticipated 
2019 fund balance in the Police Equipment Fund to $27,104.  
 



City of Tonganoxie www.tonganoxie.org (913) 845-2620 
  

ACTION NEEDED: 
The final purchase price for thirteen (13) Sig Sauer handguns will not meet the level of expenditure requiring 
City Council approval with the total dollar amount ($2,167.49) being within the City Manager’s spending 
authority.  However, the final purchase price is not possible without acquiring trade in credit derived from 
disposition of City-owned equipment. Therefore, a motion is needed to authorize the Tonganoxie Police 
Department to dispose of the following items to Sig Sauer: 
 

• (2) “five seven (57) FN pistols” with 6 magazines 
• .38 caliber Smith and Wesson Revolver 
• “High Point” nine millimeter pistol 
• Glock 22 forty caliber pistol with two magazines 
• Glock 18 c nine millimeter pistol with one magazine 
• (33) sig Sauer forty caliber magazines 
• (16) “five seven FN pistol magazines”  
• (800) rounds of forty caliber “Speer G Dot” ammunition 
• (3300) rounds of FN “five seven” ammunition  

 
These items are valued at approximately $4,446.00.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Law Enforcement Sales Trade Bid form 
Sig Sauer Invoice for (13) Sig Sauer P320 handguns 
 
cc:  George Brajkovic, City Manager 

 



Joe Stairrett

postrock@unitedwireless.com

Phone

Title with company

Item Quantity Model Manufacturer Caliber Description NFA Item  Price  Extended  

1 2 5.7 Pistol FN 5.7 6 mags, excellent condition 2x700 1,400.00$   

2 1 Revolver S&W 0.38 fair condition 175 175.00$       

3 1  Pistol Hi-Point 9mm 1 mag, semi, fair condition 40 40.00$         

4 1 22 Glock 40 S&W 2 mags, semi, good condition 225 225.00$       

5 1 18C Glock 9mm 1 mag, AUTO, good condition 1200 1,200.00$   

6 33 229 Sig Sauer 40 33 mags, good condition 33x4 132.00$       

7 16 5.7 Pistol Pro Mag 5.7 16 mags, good condition 16x6 96.00$         

8 800rds Speer GDot Speer GDot 40 unopened  192 192.00$       

9 800rds Armscor Armscor 40 practice unopened  128 128.00$       

10 3300rds FN FN 5.7 practice ammo unopened  858 858.00$       

TOTAL 54            

4,446.00$   

Law Enforcement Sales Trade Bid Form
Dealer Information Point of Contact Information

Company Name Postrock Trading LLC

Address

City / State / ZIP

FFL Number

Bid open date 29-Jan-19

Bid close date 1-Feb-19

Bid validity (180) Days from acceptance date by SIG 

Bid number TonganoxiePD0001

Agency Tonganoxie Police Department

Total Offer Price

Comments

mailto:postrock@unitedwireless.com


Name & title

Signature

Date



 

PUBLIC SAFETY SALES
72 PEASE BOULEVARD
NEWINGTON, NH 03801

TEL: 603-610-3000 
FAX: 603-610-3008

 

 

SIG SAUER is an ISO 9001 : 2015 Certified Company, Manufacturing
in Newington, New Hampshire.

 

 

Jeff Hallgren

 

PAYMENT TERMS:    Net 30 Days - No further discounts

______________________________________

 

IMPORTANT: Please specify your duty and training ammo types
when submitting your purchase order.

USD 2,167.49Quote Total Less
Trade In

USD 0.00Total Trade In Value

USD 2,167.49Subtotal 

 

The AGENCY is responsible for all applicable State, County and City taxes. Where applicable, please advise specific rate.

2019-JBRYA-66086-1Quote Name

5/21/2019Expiration Date

2/28/2019Created Date

128 East Sixth Street
Tonganoxie, KS 66086
USA

Bill To

TONGANOXIE POLICE DEPARTMENTBill To Name

Quote Lines

Quantity Product Product Description Notes
Agency

Price
Total
Price

1.00 Trades Trade in used agency owned firearms-ammo
Trade
Lot

USD
-4,446.00

USD
-4,446.00

13.00 W320XF-9-BXR3
P320, 9MM, 4.7IN, X-SERIES, BLK, STRIKER, X-RAY 3 W/NS PLATE, MOD
POLY X GRIP, (3) 17RD STEEL MAG, RAIL

 
USD

508.73
USD

6,613.49



City of Tonganoxie www.tonganoxie.org (913) 845-2620 
  

 
Office of the City Manager 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 
DATE:  March 4, 2019 
TO:  Honorable Mayor Jason K. Ward and Members of the City Council 
FROM:   Kent Heskett, Public Works Director 

SUBJECT:  Request for approval to purchase utility service vehicle  

 
DISCUSSION: 
The Public Works Department is requesting approval to purchase replacements one vehicle according to the 
prioritized initiatives included in the City’s 2019 annual budget, which was adopted by City Council in August 
2018. The vehicle currently in use which would be replaced with this purchase is a 2005 Ford Ranger pickup 
truck. The purchase is being recommended due to age, increasing frequency of maintenance requirements, 
and limited capabilities of the existing vehicle.   
 
The tabulation of the set of bids is listed below.  
 
2019 Service Truck________________________ 
Laird Noller Automotive -   $27,384.00 
Shawnee Mission Ford -   $27,991.00 
Victory Ford -     $35,500.00 
 
Based on the outcome of the bids and consideration of the bidding agencies staff recommends approval of the 
low bid received for the purchase of the service truck from Laird Noller Automotive. The total cost of the item is 
$27,344, which is 9% less than the budget allocation estimated during the budget development process in the 
summer of 2018. At this time it is anticipated that the vehicles include an 8 week lead time for delivery upon 
placement of the order.    
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
Minimal due to bid outcome. This purchase is planned in the 2019 budget in the Water Operations Fund, 
Sewer Operations Fund, and Water Capital Reserve Fund.   
 
ACTION(S) NEEDED: 
Make a motion to authorize staff to purchase a 2019 Ford F-150 service truck from Laird Noller Automotive for 
an amount not to exceed $27,344.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Expense Justification Form 
Service Truck Quote  
 
cc:  George Brajkovic, City Manager 

Dan Porter, Assistant City Manager 









City of Tonganoxie www.tonganoxie.org (913) 845-2620 
  

 
Office of the City Manager 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 
DATE:  March 4, 2019 
TO:  Honorable Mayor Jason K. Ward and Members of the City Council 
FROM:   Kent Heskett, Public Works Director 

SUBJECT:  Request for approval to purchase Water Tower Inspection Services  

 
DISCUSSION: 
The Public Works Department is requesting approval to procure the services of a firm to complete inspection of 
the City’s water storage tanks in 2019. This service is required to be completed at least once every 3 years, 
and it was last completed in 2016.  
 
This service was an initiative included in the City’s 2019 annual budget, which was adopted by City Council in 
August 2018.  
 
The tabulation of the set of bids is listed below.  
 
2019 Water Tower Inspection Services Quotes________________________ 
Inland Potable   $5,215.00 
Midco Diving    $5,399.00 
Central Tank   $9,800.00 
 
Based on the outcome of the bids and consideration of the bidding entities staff recommends approval of the 
lowest priced bid from Inland Potable. The total cost of the item is $5,215.00, which is less than the budget 
allocation estimated during the budget development process in the summer of 2018.  
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
Minimal due to bid outcome. This purchase is planned in the 2019 budget in the Water Operations Fund. 
 
ACTION(S) NEEDED: 
Make a motion to authorize staff to purchase water tower inspection services from Inland Potable for an 
amount not to exceed $5,215.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Expense Justification Form 
Water Tower Inspection Services Quote  
 
cc:  George Brajkovic, City Manager 

Dan Porter, Assistant City Manager 







City of Tonganoxie www.tonganoxie.org (913) 845-2620 
  

 
Office of the City Manager 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 
DATE:  March 4, 2019 
TO:  Honorable Mayor Jason K. Ward and Members of the City Council 
FROM:   Kent Heskett, Public Works Director 

SUBJECT:  Request for approval to purchase a replacement pump for the Waste Water Treatment Plant 
(WWTP) and to procure contractual services to rebuild the bar screen apparatus at the WWTP   

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
PUMP 
The Public Works Department is requesting approval to purchase a replacement pump for the City’s Waste 
Water Treatment Facility. This 6” pump is one of three pumps that operate on a variable basis based on flow 
rates of influent coming into the facility. The pump recommended for replacement has been out of commission 
for several weeks and staff evaluated different options for rebuilding or replacing the pump. Once it was 
determined that replacement would be required, staff evaluated the efficacy of replacement with the same 
pump or a different model. Since the original manufacturer is no longer in business staff collected bids from 
three vendors for similar sized pumps, including information about whether the new pump would require facility 
adjustments for installation. The results of the bids are listed below.  
 
Staff recommend approval of the low bid from Environmental Process Systems, which includes no additional 
facility modifications and a warranty with declining levels of coverage based on age.  
 
 

Name 
Cost for Pump & 

Thermo / Moisture 
Switches 

Does pump 
require facility 
adjustments to 

install? 
Warranty 

Environmental Process Systems $12,500 No 5 years 
DXP SuperCenter $13,144 Yes 5 years 
Haynes Equipment $16,016 Yes 5 years 
 
 
BAR SCREEN REBUILD 
Staff have also evaluated the procurement of the services of a qualified firm to complete the rebuild of the bar 
screen apparatus (bucket with arm) within the City’s Waste Water Treatment Facility. This vital piece of 
equipment is a mechanical filter consisting of a series of spaced vertical steel bars that is used to remove large 
objects, such as rags, paper, and plastics, from influent during the earliest stages of filtration at the treatment 
facility. The screening prevents damage and clogging of downstream equipment and piping but also exposes 
the bar screen to some of the most abrasive and damaging conditions within the facility. Due to the progressive 
damage from these conditions, replacement or major reconstructive work is needed soon. The replacement of 
the bar screen was an initiative included in the City’s 2019 annual budget, which was adopted by City Council 
in August 2018.  
 
After further research by staff it was determined that complete replacement of the bar screen is not considered 
feasible due to the high cost of new equipment and the associated cost for a vendor to remove the current bar 
screen and replace it. Staff then collected information from the manufacturer about the level of services 
required to rebuild the current bar screen, and as this degree of rebuild would require the manufacturer to 
complete the services the quote was collected as a sole source procurement.  
 



City of Tonganoxie www.tonganoxie.org (913) 845-2620 

Based on budget constraints and the current condition of the equipment, staff recommend approval of the 
request to rebuild this equipment using the services of the manufacturer and internal staff.  

Bar Screen at WWTP   Old Model of Pump in Lift Station 

2019 Waste Water Treatment Plant Bar Screen Rebuild Quote 
Huber Tech   $30,182.11 

BUDGET IMPACT: 
Pump Replacement - Medium. The purchase of a replacement pump for the WWTP is not budgeted for 2019. 
The Sewer Equipment Fund does include budgeted funds for emergency repairs at the plant needed before 
the next budget cycle, and this purchase would utilize approximately 17% of this budget authority.  

Bar Screen Rebuild - Minimal. The purchase of a new bar screen is planned in the 2019 budget in the Sewer 
Capital Equipment Fund and rebuilding the equipment is less than ½ the anticipated cost of replacement. 

ACTION(S) NEEDED: 
Make a motion to authorize staff to purchase a replacement pump from Environmental Process Systems for an 
amount not to exceed $12,500.  

Make a motion to authorize staff to retain the services of Huber Techology to complete a rebuild of the bar 
screen at the Waste Water Treatment Plant for an amount not to exceed $30,182.11.  

ATTACHMENTS: 
Quote Listing and Quote Detail (Pump) 
Expense Justification Form and Quote (Bar Screen Rebuild) 

cc: George Brajkovic, City Manager 
Dan Porter, Assistant City Manager 



















City of Tonganoxie www.tonganoxie.org (913) 845-2620 
  

 
Office of the City Manager 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 
DATE:  March 4, 2019 
TO:  Honorable Mayor Jason K. Ward and Members of the City Council 
FROM:   Dan Porter, Assistant City Manager 

SUBJECT:  Resolution 03-19-01: Approval of an Auditing Services Contract with Kramer & Associates 

 
DISCUSSION: 
Staff presented the results of the Request for Proposals (RFP) issued in January 2019 for auditing services for 
the 2018, 2019, and 2020 fiscal years at the February 21, 2019 City Council meeting. Publication efforts 
included notice in the Tonganoxie Mirror & Leavenworth Times, along with publication of the RFP and a 
response to inquiries received about the RFP on the City’s website. Two firms provided proposals to the City 
and, upon review, staff recommended acceptance of the low bid from Kramer & Associates.  
 
The proposed contract follows the service model established in the RFP, with an initial period of service to 
include completion of the audit of fiscal year 2019, followed by an additional period of service completing the 
audits for fiscal years 2019 and 2020 unless written notice is provided prior to September 30, 2019. Finally, the 
contract includes an additional option for the following three fiscal years unless notice is provided by either 
party prior to September 30, 2021.  
 
Terms of payment within the contract include the following amounts by year, the following amounts, subject to 
annual appropriation by the government body of the City. 
1. Audit of Year Ended December 31, 2018 - $9,425 
2. Audit of Year Ended December 31, 2019 - $9,775 
3. Audit of Year Ended December 31, 2020 - $9,900 
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
None. The charges proposed for the completion of the audit of the Fiscal Year ended December 31, 2018 
comes in slightly under what was included in the 2019 budget. Future annual budgets will be designed to 
accommodate the costs included in this contract.  
 
ACTION(S) NEEDED: 
Make a motion to authorize the execution of Resolution 03-19-01, approving the auditing services contract with 
Kramer & Associates.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 03-19-01 
Draft Contract with Kramer & Associates for Auditing Services 
 
cc:  George Brajkovic, City Manager 

 



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 03-19-01 
 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF 
THAT AUDITING SERVICES CONTRACT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
TONGANOXIE, KANSAS AND KRAMER AND ASSOCIATES CPAS, LLC    
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to ensure proper financial practices and reduce the risk of 
fraud; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Contractor desires to engage the City contractually for said services; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the City to utilize the Contractor to accomplish 
said services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council approved entering an agreement with Contractor for said 
services in a public meeting and with opportunity for public consideration and comment; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Tonganoxie, Kansas, and Kramer & Associates CPAS, LLC 
wish to enter into that certain Auditing Services Contract between the City of Tonganoxie 
and Kramer & Associates CPAS, LLC, attached hereto as Exhibit A. 
   
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE 
CITY OF TONGANOXIE, KANSAS: 
 
Section 1.  That the Governing Body approves and hereby authorizes the Mayor to 
execute that certain Auditing Services Contract between the City of Tonganoxie and 
Kramer & Associates CPAS, LLC, attached hereto as Exhibit A.   
 
Section 2.  That this resolution shall become effective upon passage.   

 
  



2 
 

ADOPTED by the Governing Body this 4th day of March, 2019.   
   
SIGNED by the Mayor this 4th day of March, 2019.   
 
SEAL 
 
       ______________________________ 
                  Jason K. Ward, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 
Patricia C. Hagg, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________________ 
Shannon M. Marcano, City Attorney  
 
  



3 
 

EXHIBIT A 
Audit Services Contract with City of Tonganoxie and Kramer & Associates CPAS, 

LLC 
 



Page 1 of 8 

 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) made this fourth day of 
March, 2019, between the City of Tonganoxie, Kansas, a constitutionally chartered municipal 
corporation (“City”), and Kramer and Associates CPAS LLC, a Kansas corporation 
(“Contractor”) (hereafter jointly the “Parties”), shall provide auditing services to the City in 
accordance with the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement. 
 

WHEREAS, the City desires to ensure proper financial practices and reduce the risk of 
fraud; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Contractor desires to engage the City contractually for said services; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the City to utilize the Contractor to accomplish 

said services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council approved entering an agreement with Contractor for said 

services in a public meeting and with opportunity for public consideration and comment; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, the mutual covenants and 

promises contained herein and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged and confessed, the Parties hereto agree as 
follows: 

 
Sec. 1. Engagement. 
 
 City engages Contractor to render and Contractor agrees to render to City all services as 
described in Contractor’s written response to the solicitation for auditing firms and as more fully 
described in Section 4 of this Agreement. This Agreement incorporates Contractor’s written 
response by reference and shall survive any change in the Contractor’s chief executive officer 
or principals. 
 
Sec. 2. Payments. 
 

A. As consideration for the performance of the Contractor’s obligations hereunder, the 
City will pay Contractor a total amount not to exceed the following amounts, subject 
to annual appropriation by the government body of the City. 

1. Audit of Year Ended December 31, 2018 - $9,425 
2. Audit of Year Ended December 31, 2019 - $9,775 
3. Audit of Year Ended December 31, 2020 - $9,900 

B. No request for payment by Contractor in excess of cumulative annual charges 
pursuant to Section 2(1-3) herein shall be payable under the terms of this 
Agreement.  The City agrees to request work by Contractor not to exceed the 
limitations as set forth in Section 2(1-3) herein. 
 

C. If the Initial Term of this Agreement is extended pursuant to Section 3 of this 
Agreement, any obligation of the City to pay the Contractor for future renewable 
years shall be subject to annual appropriation by the City Council, which may amend 
the total allowable charges as defined in Section 2(1-3) herein. 



Page 2 of 8 

 

D. The City agrees to pay Contractor either on an hourly or project basis, as determined 
by the Parties, in the course of its normal monthly payment cycle upon receipt of 
itemized invoices from Contractor in a form acceptable to the City.   

E. All rates will include costs for materials and will require no additional charges other 
than the rates as defined herein. 

F. Contractor shall submit detailed invoices which outline the date, time, and service 
performed.  Verified invoices will be paid within one month of submittal. 
 

G. The City is not liable for any obligation incurred by Contractor except as approved 
under the provisions of this Agreement. 

 
Sec. 3. Term of Agreement. 
 
The term of this Agreement (“Term”) shall be for one (1) year commencing on March 4, 2019, 
(the “Commencement Date”) and, unless sooner terminated pursuant to any provision herein, 
shall expire on October 1, 2021. Subject to satisfactory performance by Contractor, the term of 
this Agreement will be extended for an additional term of two (2) years unless written notice is 
provided by the City prior to September 30, 2019. Unless written notice is received by either 
party prior to September 30, 2021, the agreement will automatically renew for a period of three 
(3) years under the terms of payment as defined in Section 2(3) herein.   
 
Sec. 4. Scope of Services. 
 
Contractor shall perform services including, but not limited to, the following: 
 

A. Annual Audit 

1. Interviews with City staff 

2. On-site audit of financial practices in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards as issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of 
America and testing internal controls and risk of fraud 

3. Written opinion of findings and recommendations prepared no later than 
August 1 of each year including regulatory required supplementary 
information, unless otherwise agreed to in written communication by the City 

4. Review with senior management 

5. Presentation to City Council 

B. Single Audit, if applicable pursuant to the Single Audit Act and OMB Circular A-133 

1. Interviews with City staff 

2. On-site audit of financial practices in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards as issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of 
America and testing internal controls and risk of fraud. 

3. Written opinion of findings and recommendations prepared no later than 
August 1 of each year including regulatory required supplementary 
information, unless otherwise agreed to in written communication by the City 

4. Review with senior management 



Page 3 of 8 

 

5. Presentation to City Council 

C. Representation of the City’s interests in reporting on the City’s financial statements. 

D. Prompt response with the care and skill ordinarily used by members of the 
Contractor’s profession, practicing under similar conditions at the same time and 
medium. 

City agrees to the following provisions: 

A. Designate a person and/or agency to act as the primary point of contact to the 
Contractor with respect to the services to be performed by the Contractor under the 
terms of this Agreement. 

B. Make available to the Contractor all existing data and records that are relevant to 
financial systems and other information possessed by the City that are relevant to 
the successful performance by the Contractor. 

C. Approve all criteria and information as to the City’s requirements pursuant to Section 
4 herein, including objectives and constraints, performance requirements, and 
budgetary limitations. 

Sec. 5. Notices. 
 
All notices required by this Agreement shall be in writing and sent by regular U.S. Mail, postage 
prepaid or commercial overnight courier to the following: 
 
 City:  Assistant City Manager 

City of Tonganoxie 
P.O. Box 326 
Tonganoxie, Kansas 66086 
(913) 845-2620 

  
Contractor: Anthony B. Kramer, CPA 

2050 Spruce Street 
Leavenworth, Kansas 66048 
(913) 680-1690 

    
Sec. 6.  Indemnification:  Definitions 
 
A.  For purposes of this Section 6 only, the following terms shall have the meanings listed: 
 

a. Claims means all claims, damages, liability, losses, costs and expenses, court costs 
and reasonable attorneys' fees, including attorneys’ fees incurred by the City in the 
enforcement of this indemnity obligation. 

 
b. Contractor's Agents means Contractor's officers, employees, sub-contractors, 
subcontractors, successors, assigns, invitees, and other agents. 
 
c. City means City and its agents, officials, officers and employees. 

 
B.  Contractor's obligations under this Paragraph with respect to indemnification for acts or 
omissions shall be limited to the coverage and limits of insurance that Contractor is required to 



Page 4 of 8 

 

procure and maintain under this Agreement.  Contractor affirms that it has had the opportunity 
to recover the costs of the liability insurance required in this Agreement in its contract price. 
 
C.  Nothing in this section shall apply to indemnification for professional negligence which is 
specified in a separate provision of this Agreement. 
 
Sec. 7.   Indemnification for Negligence.   
If this Agreement is for professional services, Contractor shall indemnify, and hold harmless City 
and any of its agencies, officials, officers, or employees from and against all claims, damages, 
liability, losses, costs, and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, arising out of any 
negligent acts or omissions in connection with this Agreement, caused by Contractor, its 
employees, agents, subcontractors, or caused by others for whom Contractor is liable, in the 
performance of professional services under this Agreement.  Contractor is not obligated under 
this section to indemnify City for the negligent acts of City or any of its agencies, officials, 
officers, or employees.  
 

Sec. 8.  Independent Contractor.  
Contractor is an independent contractor and is not City’s agent.  Contractor has no authority to 
take any action or execute any documents on behalf of City. 

Sec. 9.  Insurance.  
A. Contractor shall procure and maintain in effect throughout the duration of this Agreement 
insurance coverage not less than the types and amounts specified in this section.  In the event 
that additional insurance, not specified herein, is required during the term of this Agreement, 
Contractor shall supply such insurance at City’s cost.  Policies containing a Self-Insured 
Retention are unacceptable to City. 

A. Professional Liability Insurance with limits per claim and annual aggregate of $1,000,000. 

B. The policies listed above may not be canceled until after thirty (30) days written notice of 
cancellation to City, ten (10) days in the event of nonpayment of premium.  The Commercial 
General and Automobile Liability Insurance specified above shall name the City as additional 
insured for the services performed under this Agreement.  Contractor shall provide to City at 
execution of this Agreement a certificate of insurance showing all required endorsements and 
additional insureds.   

C. All insurance coverage must be written by companies that have an A.M. Best’s rating of 
“B+V” or better, and are licensed or approved by the State of Kansas to do business in Kansas. 

D. Regardless of any approval by City, it is the responsibility of Contractor to maintain the 
required insurance coverage in force at all times; its failure to do so will not relieve it of any 
contractual obligation or responsibility.  In the event of Contractor’s failure to maintain the 
required insurance in effect, City may order Contractor to immediately stop work, and upon ten 
(10) days notice and an opportunity to cure, may pursue its remedies for breach of this 
Agreement as provided for herein and by law. 

Sec. 10. Governing Law.   
This Agreement shall be construed and governed in accordance with the laws of the 
State of Kansas without giving effect to Kansas’s choice of law provisions.  The City and 
Contractor: (1) submit to the jurisdiction of the state and federal courts located in 
Leavenworth County, Kansas; (2) waive any and all objections to jurisdiction and venue; 



Page 5 of 8 

 

and (3) will not raise forum non conveniens as an objection to the location of any 
litigation. 
 
Sec. 11.  Compliance with Laws.  
 
Contractor shall comply with all federal, state and local laws, ordinances and regulations 
applicable to the work and this Agreement. 
 
Sec. 12.Termination. 
A. This Agreement may be terminated by either party in the event of any material default in or 
material breach of the terms and conditions of this Agreement by the other party.  The 
occurrence of any of the following events by Contractor or the City continued for thirty (30) days 
after receipts by the defaulting party of written notice thereof and defaulting party’s failure to 
cure, or to diligently commence the cure of, the same, shall deem that party in material default 
of this Agreement. 

(i) Failure to comply with any of the material provisions required of either party 
under this Agreement; or 

(ii) If, by operation of the law or otherwise, the right, title, or interest of Contractor 
or City in this Agreement is transferred to, passes to, or devolves upon any other person, 
firm or corporation without written consent of the other party; or 

(iii) Upon the levy of any attachment or execution of any process of a court of 
competent jurisdiction which does or will interfere with Contractor’s or City’s performance 
under this Agreement, and which attachment, execution or other process of such court is 
not enjoined, vacated, dismissed, or set aside within a period of thirty (30) days; or 

(iv) Upon the suspension, revocation or termination of any power, license, permit, 
or authority that has the effect of preventing Contractor or City from performing under 
this Agreement; or 

(v) Nonpayment by Contractor or City of any sums required to be paid or remitted 
herein; or 

(vi) Exposure of substantial part of either party’s property to any levy, seizure, 
assignment or sale for, or by, a creditor or governmental agency. 

 
B. The City may terminate this Agreement at any time for any reason when it would be in the 
best interests of the City provided that the City notifies Contractor in writing at least thirty (30) 
days in advance of the effective date of cancellation.  The City will pay Contractor for the work 
completed under the terms of this Agreement as of the date of termination. 

C. If this Agreement is terminated prior to Contractor’s completion of services, all work or 
materials prepared or obtained by Contractor pursuant to this Agreement shall become City’s 
property.  

D. If this Agreement is terminated prior to Contractor’s completion of the services to be 
performed hereunder, Contractor shall return to City any sums paid in advance by City for 
services that would otherwise have had to be rendered between the effective date of termination 
and the original ending date of the Agreement. Contractor shall prepare an accounting of the 
services performed and money spent by Contractor up to the effective date of termination and 
shall return to City any remaining sums within thirty (30) days of such date.                                         
 



Page 6 of 8 

 

Sec. 13.  Default and Remedies.   
 
If Contractor shall be in default or breach of any provision of this Agreement, City may terminate 
this Agreement, suspend City’s performance, withhold payment or invoke any other legal or 
equitable remedy after giving Contractor notice and opportunity to correct such default or 
breach. 
 
Sec. 14. Waiver.  
  
Waiver by either party of any term, covenant, or condition hereof shall not operate as a waiver 
of any subsequent breach of the same or of any other term, covenant or condition.  No term, 
covenant, or condition of this Agreement can be waived by Contractor except by written consent 
of City, and forbearance or indulgence by City in any regard whatsoever shall not constitute a 
waiver of same to be performed by Contractor to which the same may apply and, until complete 
performance by Contractor of the term, covenant or condition, City shall be entitled to invoke 
any remedy available to it under this Agreement or by law despite any such forbearance or 
indulgence. 
 
Sec. 15.  Modification.   
 
Unless stated otherwise in this Agreement, no provision of this Agreement may be waived, 
modified or amended except in writing signed by both Parties. 
 
Sec. 16. Headings; Construction of Contract.  
 
The headings of each section of this Agreement are for reference only.  Unless the context of 
this Agreement clearly requires otherwise, all terms and words used herein, regardless of the 
number and gender in which used, shall be construed to include any other number, singular or 
plural, or any other gender, masculine, feminine or neuter, the same as if such words had been 
fully and properly written in that number or gender. 
 
Sec. 17. Severability of Provisions.  
 
Except as specifically provided in this Agreement, all of the provisions of this Agreement shall 
be severable.  In the event that any provision of this Agreement is found by a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or unlawful, the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall 
be valid unless the court finds that the valid provisions of this Agreement are so essentially and 
inseparably connected with and so dependent upon the invalid provision(s) that it cannot be 
presumed that the Parties to this Agreement could have included the valid provisions without 
the invalid provision(s); or unless the court finds that the valid provisions, standing alone, are 
incapable of being performed in accordance with the intentions of the Parties. 
 
Sec. 18.  Audit. 
 
A. The City Manager or designee(s) shall have the right to audit this Agreement and all books, 
documents and records relating thereto. 

B. Contractor shall maintain all its books, documents and records relating to this Agreement 
during the contract period and for three (3) years after the date of final payment. 



Page 7 of 8 

 

C.  The books, documents and records of Contractor in connection with this Agreement shall be 
made available to the City Manager or designee(s) within ten (10) days after the written request 
is made. 

 
Sec. 19.  Tax Compliance.   
 
Contractor shall comply with all federal, state and municipal tax laws as a precondition to the 
City making the first payment under this Agreement or any contract renewal.  Contractor shall 
submit proof of compliance to the City upon request.   
 
Sec. 20.  Assignability or Subcontracting 
 
Contractor shall not subcontract, assign or transfer any part or all of Contractor’s obligations or 
interests without City’s prior approval.  If Contractor shall subcontract, assign, or transfer any 
part of Contractor’s interests or obligations under this Agreement without the prior approval of 
City, it shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement. 
 
Sec.  21. Conflicts of Interest.   
 
A. Contractor certifies that no officer or employee of City has, or will have, a direct or indirect 
financial or personal interest in this Agreement, and that no officer or employee of City, or 
member of such officer’s or employee’s immediate family, either has negotiated, or has or will 
have an arrangement, concerning employment to perform services on behalf of Contractor in 
this Agreement. 

B. Contractor agrees to withdraw from representation of both parties in the event that Contractor 
would concurrently be contractually obligated or otherwise committed in service to a third party 
that has interest in or engagement with any plan, plat, rezoning, or other work with the City.    

 
Sec. 22.  Buy American Preference.    
 
It is the policy of the City that any manufactured goods or commodities used or supplied in the 
performance of any City contract or any subcontract thereto shall be manufactured or produced 
in the United States whenever possible. 
 
Sec.  23.  Prohibited Contracts with Certain Professionals. 
 
A.  For the purposes of this section, the terms "board" or "commission" shall be defined as 
including the Retail Commercial Development Corporation, the Recreation Commission, the 
Leavenworth County Development Corporation, the Leavenworth County Port Authority, the 
Tonganoxie City Council, the Tonganoxie Chamber of Commerce, the Tonganoxie School 
District. 
 
B.  Neither the City Manager, nor any department, board or commission of the City shall 
contract for professional services with any attorney who, at the time of the issuance of the 
contract, either in an individual or firm capacity, represents any party in litigation against the 
City, exclusive of representation in municipal court, exclusive of those attorneys employed by a 
not-for-profit legal services corporation and exclusive of where the City is named as a nominal 
party, where the litigation has been filed with the agreement of the City and the party 
represented by the attorney, or where the Council has otherwise waived this requirement.  



Page 8 of 8 

 

Nothing set forth in this section shall be deemed to supersede the Rules of Professional 
Conduct for Attorneys.  
 
C.  Neither the City Manager, nor any department, board, or commission shall contract for 
professional services with any architect, engineer, or other professional, exclusive of medical 
doctors or appraisers, who, at the time of the issuance of the contract, serves as an expert 
witness for any party in litigation against the City. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Contractor and City have caused this Professional Services 
Agreement to be duly executed as set forth below. 
 
Contractor 
I hereby certify that I have authority to 
execute this document on behalf of Kramer 
and Associates CPAS LLC 
 
 
 
 
By:  ______________________________
 Anthony B. Kramer 
Title:  Principal 
 
 

City of Tonganoxie, Kansas,  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
By: _________________________________
   Jason K. Ward    
Title:       Mayor 
 
 

 

  

 



Land Acquisition Costs  Budget Actual Costs Incurred Balance Remaining
Land Purchase 195,149.00                            192,921.94                            2,227.06                               
Geotech 7,500.00                              3,250.00                               4,250.00                             
Special Inspections 35,000.00                              ‐                                          35,000.00                             
Topographical Survey 3,500.00                                ‐                                          3,500.00                               
Subtotal Land Acquisition Liabilities 241,149                                 196,172                                 44,977                                  

Pre‐Construction & Design Liabilities ‐ JE Dunn Budget Actual Costs Incurred Balance Remaining
Architectural Fee 285,000.00                          20,772.00                             264,228.00                         
Structural 26,280.00                              ‐                                          26,280.00                             
Civil 29,160.00                              ‐                                          29,160.00                             
Interior/Furnishing 24,510.00                              ‐                                          24,510.00                             
Travel Reimbursement JE Dunn 21,050.00                              679.00                                   20,371.00                             
Subtotal Pre‐Construction & Design Liabilities ‐ JE Dunn 386,000                                 21,451                                   364,549                                

Design Build Construction Liabilities ‐ JE Dunn Budget Actual Costs Incurred Balance Remaining
Construct and Equipt Library Facility (Design‐Build Contract) 3,122,851.00                        ‐                                          3,122,851.00                       
Subtotal Design Build Construction Liabilities ‐ JE Dunn 3,122,851                              ‐                                          3,122,851                             

Budget Actual Costs Incurred Balance Remaining
Total Project Liabilities (not including issuance costs) 3,750,000                           217,623                               3,532,377                          

Library Project Budget Report ‐ As of 2019‐03‐01


	Council Members
	I. Pledge of Allegiance
	II. Approval of Minutes – Special meeting dated February 21, 2019
	III. Consent Agenda
	IV. Open Agenda
	V. Old Business
	VI. New Business
	VII. Information & Communications (No Action Required)
	VIII. Adjourn
	06g_Attach_Auditing Services Agreement_Tonganoxie-Kramer and Associates_2018-2020_v1.pdf
	Sec. 9.  Insurance.
	A. Contractor shall procure and maintain in effect throughout the duration of this Agreement insurance coverage not less than the types and amounts specified in this section.  In the event that additional insurance, not specified herein, is required d...
	A. Professional Liability Insurance with limits per claim and annual aggregate of $1,000,000.
	B. The policies listed above may not be canceled until after thirty (30) days written notice of cancellation to City, ten (10) days in the event of nonpayment of premium.  The Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance specified above shall...

	C. All insurance coverage must be written by companies that have an A.M. Best’s rating of “B+V” or better, and are licensed or approved by the State of Kansas to do business in Kansas.
	D. Regardless of any approval by City, it is the responsibility of Contractor to maintain the required insurance coverage in force at all times; its failure to do so will not relieve it of any contractual obligation or responsibility.  In the event of...

	Sec. 10. Governing Law.
	Sec. 12.Termination.
	A. This Agreement may be terminated by either party in the event of any material default in or material breach of the terms and conditions of this Agreement by the other party.  The occurrence of any of the following events by Contractor or the City c...
	B. The City may terminate this Agreement at any time for any reason when it would be in the best interests of the City provided that the City notifies Contractor in writing at least thirty (30) days in advance of the effective date of cancellation.  T...
	C. If this Agreement is terminated prior to Contractor’s completion of services, all work or materials prepared or obtained by Contractor pursuant to this Agreement shall become City’s property.

	Sec. 14. Waiver.
	Waiver by either party of any term, covenant, or condition hereof shall not operate as a waiver of any subsequent breach of the same or of any other term, covenant or condition.  No term, covenant, or condition of this Agreement can be waived by Contr...
	Sec. 15.  Modification.
	Unless stated otherwise in this Agreement, no provision of this Agreement may be waived, modified or amended except in writing signed by both Parties.
	Sec. 16. Headings; Construction of Contract.
	The headings of each section of this Agreement are for reference only.  Unless the context of this Agreement clearly requires otherwise, all terms and words used herein, regardless of the number and gender in which used, shall be construed to include ...
	Sec. 17. Severability of Provisions.
	Except as specifically provided in this Agreement, all of the provisions of this Agreement shall be severable.  In the event that any provision of this Agreement is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or unlawful, the rem...
	Sec. 18.  Audit.
	A. The City Manager or designee(s) shall have the right to audit this Agreement and all books, documents and records relating thereto.
	B. Contractor shall maintain all its books, documents and records relating to this Agreement during the contract period and for three (3) years after the date of final payment.
	C.  The books, documents and records of Contractor in connection with this Agreement shall be made available to the City Manager or designee(s) within ten (10) days after the written request is made.

	Sec. 19.  Tax Compliance.
	Contractor shall comply with all federal, state and municipal tax laws as a precondition to the City making the first payment under this Agreement or any contract renewal.  Contractor shall submit proof of compliance to the City upon request.
	Sec. 20.  Assignability or Subcontracting
	Contractor shall not subcontract, assign or transfer any part or all of Contractor’s obligations or interests without City’s prior approval.  If Contractor shall subcontract, assign, or transfer any part of Contractor’s interests or obligations under ...
	A. Contractor certifies that no officer or employee of City has, or will have, a direct or indirect financial or personal interest in this Agreement, and that no officer or employee of City, or member of such officer’s or employee’s immediate family, ...
	B. Contractor agrees to withdraw from representation of both parties in the event that Contractor would concurrently be contractually obligated or otherwise committed in service to a third party that has interest in or engagement with any plan, plat, ...


	06g_Attach_Resolution 03-19-01-Approving Audit Services Contract with Kramer and Associates.pdf
	RESOLUTION NO. 03-19-01

	03_Check Report 02-13 - 02-28.pdf
	Page 1
	Page 2

	02_City Council Draft Minutes_2019-02-21_final.pdf
	I. Pledge of Allegiance
	II. Approval of Minutes – Regular meeting dated February 4, 2019
	III. Consent Agenda
	IV. Open Agenda
	V. Old Business
	VI. New Business
	VII. Information & Communications (No Action Required)
	VIII. Adjourn




